OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peter borough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, September 19, 2006

SAU OFFICE
7:00 pm.
MINUTES
Board Administration
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Keith Burke, Supt.
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote, Marian Alese, B.A.
Gail Cromwell, Butch Estey, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Bart Goodeve, Christy Greene, Dick Dunning, SMS
Dan Harper, Craig Hicks, Jeanie West, SMS
Arthur Knight, Bill McKinnon Sue Copley, PES
Gib West, GBS
Beth SanMartino, CVEA Deb Lesure, AES
Kelsey Stewart, CVHS Student Nikki McGettigan, TES

Emily Callahan, CVHS Student

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Craig Hicks called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was
recited.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required)

a. August 29, 2006 Pg. 1-6)

b. September 5, 2006 Pg. 7-38)
Butch Estey motioned to aaept the minutes of the August 29" and September 5"
Board meetings. Stewart Brock second. Gail made the following correction on page
12 ofthe August 29" minutes. Gail said that the most common type of audit is the
financial audit done by an outside firm. The proposed Internal Audit Committeeis
different. It looks at whether or not the policies of the Board are being followed or
not and it is saffed by the Board itself. Unanimous.

3. Public Comment
None

4. Superintendent@® Report and Presentation of Business
a. Request to Accept Donation (Board Vote Required) (Pg. 3343)
1. Pierce School has received from Target Stores a check in the
amount of $47.58 for student activities
2. Dublin Consolidated has received from Lou King two folding
tables and a microwave valued at $300 for school use



3. Dublin Consolidated has received from the Garden Club of
Dublin a check in the amount of $500 for the purpose of
Conservation Camp
4. Francestown Elementary has received from the PTO a shade
structure valued at $2500
5. South Meadow School has received from Target Stores a check
in the amount of $26.46 for student activities
Keith Burke read the donations listed above.
Butch Estey motioned to acept the donations listed above Beverly Bacon second.
Unanimous.

b. Personnel BPlease bring your agenda with you (Board Vote
Required)

Keith Burke read the Cross Country resignation from SMS, Athletic nominations, Co-
curricular nominations, special education and adult education nominations as well as web
page and technology coordinator nominations. The nominations and resignation were
presented to and approved by the Personnel Committee.
Dan Harper motioned to accept theresignation and nominations asread. Ray Cote
second. Dan mentioned the leave of absence on the agenda waswithdrawn from the
person requesting the leave Unanimous.

c. Audio Tape Policy
Keith said that last June the House enacted a bill that required the Board to pass a policy
as part of our recording procedures on busses. It has required us to turn off the audio on
the busses. Keith asked that the ordinary waiting period be waived and the Board be
allowed to vote on it tonight. Craig asked if the video was currently running. Keith
confirmed that video was recording but not audio. The Board took time to review the
document titled Video and Audio Recording on School Buses. (Attachment #1). Gail
asked about holding a public hearing as detailed in the document. Keith said that
NHSBA considers a Board meeting to be a public meeting. Shelly Nelkens said that it
has not been posted. Christy said that for that reason it ought to be looked at on a later
date. Craig asked if the Board preferred to look at this in two weeks or thirty days. Two
weeks was the consensus.
Butch Estey moved the 30 day waiting period to allow review in two weeks. Arthur
Knight second. Unanimous.

d. Monthly Events Calendar (Pg. 44)
Keith said that the monthly agenda was included on page 44 of tonight’s agenda.

5. Reports

a. Teacher
Beth SanMartino said that everything is going well with teachers. Most of the schools
are holding open houses. Craig asked if the dates are posted on the calendar. Beth
confirmed that they were.

b. Student
Craig Hicks welcomed Kelsey Stewart and Emmy Callahan. Kelsey said that freshman
reps are being voted on this week and that a retreat is scheduled. Homecoming is in two



weeks. Craig asked how PBIS was going. Kelsey said that some clarification is needed.
Beverly Bacon said that PBIS met today and spoke with a student representative about
what PBIS is and is not and what new school rules are in place.

Butch asked how the hall passes are going. Emmy said that they are not going over so
well. Students are concerned about sanitation issues. In addition, students are stealing
the passes so that classrooms don’t have them. Stewart Brock asked the students why the
hall passes are implemented. Kelsey said that the students think that it is as a result of
PBIS. Kelsey said that it will be discussed at the retreat. Beverly said that PBIS talked
about speaking with Student Council and talking about what PBIS is and isn’t. Butch
asked about the school store. He understands that it is closed 10 minutes before and after
the bell. Emmy said that it doesn’t affect underclassman because they can’t get to it.
Butch asked if that would be brought up at the retreat. Sue Dell said that the school store
is closed during Block 3, which is the lunch period as a result of the Wellness Policy.
Sue also clarified that the store is not open 10 minutes before and after advisory block
only. There is an impact on the school store and this had been discussed with Peter
Englert ahead of time. Talk is underway about e-commerce. Some of the rules seem to
be harsh but this decision comes as a result of legislation.

c. Education
Christy Greene said that they will meet on September 25" and the topic will be Math.
Math in the district and math at the high school will be discussed. Algebra for all will be
discussed. Math faculty from the high school will attend this meeting. Any questions?
Please let Christy know so that they can be addressed. They are looking to lay out a
tentative agenda for the remainder of the year. World Language is being looked at.

d. Budget and Property
Craig Hicks said they will meet next on the 26™. On the 12™ they talked about the
budget. Discussion took place about having a program neutral budget. Revenues are not
looking any better than last year. Booster organizations and concession usage was
discussed to make it a win/win situation.

e. Personnel
Dan Harper said they met last night. Discussion on web page and technology and
different ways of delivering services took place. Next meeting is scheduled for Oct. 16™.

f. Professional Development
Gail Cromwell said that she missed the last meeting.

g. Communications
Stewart Brock said they met last Monday. (See attachment #2). Stewart said that chairs
will put together a statement as a draft of actionable items. Communications will be
pushed out in multiple ways. Not everyone visits the website so alternate ways of
communicating is being looked at. Consistency is needed. The information would be
presented to the Board for distribution to the media. Dan Harper said that head shots of
the Board members should be posted on the site to make ourselves more familiar.
Stewart said that it might be a good way to break down some barriers. Stewart asked if in
general it sounded like a good way to communicate for subcommittees. Bart said that it



didn’t need to be done at every meeting but rather only when a motion is proposed that is
actionable for example. Mary asked who would be webmaster to update the site. Bart
said that this is in discussion. Ray said that he understood that someone is in place at the
SAU that could do this for us. Start simple, make sure it is up-to-date. Bart said that if
things that are prepared for the board are web friendly to the extent that it is easily posted
on the website to the degree that it is appropriate to do so would make things easier.
Keith said that the content being up to date is important. Someone on the board needs to
decide what and when it goes on the site. Keith said Paul talked about list serve which
we already have in place. Stewart said we want to start simple and ask for feedback.

This cannot be the only way of communicating. If it goes on the web it needs to go out in
another way too. Ray said that this is one of the best ways to distribute agendas and other
information to the public. The recommendation was to make a motion that the
Superintendent makes available a public mail list with a link to this signup form. Once
created, the board can work to widely promote.

Ray Cote motioned to direct the Superintendent to o eate, within the next 30 days a
publicly available eectronic mail list to which the SAU office sends all Board
agendasin a timely manner Bi.e, atthe sametime they are emailed out to the Board
members. A link to the sgn-up form for this mail list shall be available, at lead,
from the main Conval.edu page the SAU office page and the School Board page
Once created, the School Board should widely promote the existence of this mail list.
Bill suggested that once the minutes are approved they should be sent out through this
route. Ray said that he would love to talk about this as well. Shelly Nelkens, community
member, asked how people would know how to signup to be put on the list. She asked if
the town halls and libraries know about this. Craig said that most of the town halls are
listed already. We plan to build on this. Stewart said that we could get this information
out at the quarterly meet and greets in the towns. Shelly asked if the towns know to pull
and post the agenda. Keith said that we can ask the town’s to do that. Stewart asked
about the timeline. Can it be done in thirty days? Keith said we will do it in thirty days
and test it. Keith asked about monitoring of the list serve.

All werein favor of Ray@ motion.

Meet and greets were scheduled in towns as listed below.

Peterborough will meet on October 19" with location and time to be announced.
Bennington will meet on September 26" at the PAC meeting at GBS.

Antrim — to be determined.

Hancock — to be determined.

Greenfield has already met.

Sharon — waiting for building to open

Francestown will meet on September 27",

Dublin — to be determined.

Temple will meet on October 19th

6. Old Business
a. Goal #3DbSchool Board Goals Frame
Stewart said that the Board has agreed to evaluate their performance. This is a long term
goal. He proposed that we figure out what the anchors are. He asked the Board what the
things are that we want to measure. We want to be consistent with the goals of the
Superintendent. Stewart asked that input be forwarded to him. (Attachment #3)



Butch said that they are trying to meet next week with the Principal but next week is
booked. They are looking at the first week in October. Butch said that before tonight’s
meeting he got a call from a parent. CSPAN was reporting about search and seizure. If
there is no reasonable reason for search and seizure but a teacher has a hunch they can
search. It went to a vote and passed and it ties the schools into Federal Funding. Butch
said that he would get a copy of the bill and get it out.

Ray Cote said that with regard to implementation of the Wellness Policy he feels that we
should lead by example.

Ray motioned that the Board direct the Superintendent to ensure that all vending
machines and food servicesin district owned buildings provide only those foods and
drinksthat are allowed under the district@ Wellness Policy. This appliesto formal
vending machines aswell asany casual vending system that may bein place. This
process to be completed by 31 December 2006.

Basically, we have put a wellness policy into place and it is important that it be enforced.
It is important not to put the policy in place and then get around to them at a later date.
Bill McKinnon second.

Marian asked for clarification. She asked if Ray would like all vending machines to be
compliant by December of this year. Ray said that he meant that the SAU machines.
Ray amended his motion to delete the words Odstrict owned buildingsOand add
Ohe SAU officesO. Christy second. All in favor.

Keith said that before they vote on this to let us have some time to consider it among
ourselves. Let’s look at the ramifications of this. We have a number of meetings in this
board room. Craig said that brings up a point. He heard “vending machines”. What if
someone has a function in place? Ray said that it is important to lead by example and
that we follow the rules that we put in place. He understands the concern. Keith said that
there is an implication timeline for everyone else and Ray is asking that the timeline be
moved up for this office in particular. Bart said that he agrees with Keith. Itisa
marvelous insight to the nightmare this policy is going to be about. It will bring up
various thoughts on this policy. Craig said that it would be easier to implement in the
kitchens. Bart said that Keith has asked for thirty days to reflect and he thinks that this is
valuable. Butch said that we have two years to put this in place but the high school has
changed the vending machines and changed the product at the food store already. Craig
said that the grey area is how we use this room. Craig said that he wouldn’t mind taking
a couple of weeks to look at this. Marian said that as far as the schools go with vending
machines, there is a cost to this. Vegetables cost more than junk food. Vendors are
beginning to produce products that meet our guidelines. Marian said that she had a
school lunch yesterday that had a chicken cutlet in it and not mystery meat. We are
phasing in healthier foods. Marian added that this building is not just used by the SAU.
Other groups do workshops here and she is unsure how this would be monitored. It will
take some time to get this out. It is a process that is being gone through. Arthur said that
there is a big difference between what the school is distributing and what is served at a
meeting or made available at a meeting. Butch said that when this was first brought up
and he mentioned that cupcakes would not be allowed, Marian said that this was the way
it was going to be and we would just have to live with it. Marian said that it is not what
she said but that there was a phase in period. Stewart said that we should always try to do
the right thing by suggesting but we can’t force.



Christy said that she was confused, was the motion vending machines? Ray said that it
did refer to vending machines where a commercial transaction of money takes place.
Christy said two issues are at hand. Our vending machines having only healthy items and
the use of this room and the food items brought here. Ray said that he is not surprised by
the level of discussion here because he doesn’t agree with the way it is being
implemented. Craig said we are talking about one vending machine. It would not be that
difficult for that machine to comply. Bart said that he wondered if Ray could change his
language to say “food that is served or provided by the district”. Ray said that he would
not want to say provided by the district. Bart asked who maintains that vending machine.
Keith said that it is stocked through the program. Craig said it is a simple task. Keith
said that we have 15 adults working in this building that will be affected by this motion.
Before we force this upon them it would be respectful to let them voice their opinion.
Bill McKinnon said that we have forced this upon the entire school district and we did
not ask them. Butch asked that we revisit the wellness policy. Marian said that the first
policy is the policy itself and the remainder is the implementation of the policy. It says
that a committee needs to be formed to monitor progress. A diverse group needs to make
up the committee. We need to form this before we move forward. Mary Allen said that
she will support Ray’s motion. We are talking about just one machine.

All in favor of ray’s motion?

Bart abstained. Motion carries.

Craig asked if we wanted to revisit the wellness policy. Craig said that we will put
“Wellness” under old business for the next meeting. Beverly volunteered to be on that
committee. Marian will provide the rules.

7. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)
Marian certified that manifests 21 — 26 totaling $ 310,964.35 and Payroll 5, SA and 6
totaling $ 1,768,010.77 as well as Sub Run 101 — 103 totaling $ 15,106.02 have been
reviewed by me and found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School
District for goods and/or services received and have been properly processed prior to
their submittal to the School Board.
Craig Hicks motioned to aaept the approval of the manifestsasread. Stewart
Brock second. Unanimous.

The next School Board meeting will take place on October 3™ at 7:00 p.m. at the SAU.

8. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3,lic
a. Personnd

Dan Harper motioned to go into non-public session at 8:02 p.m. for matters of
personnel.

Respectfully Submitted,

Brenda L. Marschok



